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          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU: Good morning and

          3  welcome to this morning's hearing of the Committee

          4  on Transportation.

          5                 My name is John Liu, I have the

          6  privilege of chairing this committee.

          7                 We have one item on the agenda today,

          8  Proposed Intro. No. 262- A, which has had a prior

          9  hearing in this Committee, almost exactly one year

         10  ago, on September 26th of 2002.

         11                 Most recently, this Bill was deferred

         12  to today's hearing from the Committee calendar last

         13  Thursday.

         14                 Proposed Intro. No. 262- A would

         15  require air conditioning on any bus or other motor

         16  vehicle transporting certain children with

         17  disabilities to and from school.  This Bill would

         18  ensure that children with disabilities who will

         19  require an air conditioned environment, for health

         20  reasons, while being transported to and from school

         21  will receive such climate control. This Bill

         22  recognizes, and addresses the fact, that such

         23  children experience adverse health and behavioral

         24  conditions when forced to ride on a school bus,

         25  during the warm weather months, without air
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          2  conditioning.

          3                 This measure is designed to improve

          4  the health and quality of life for such qualifying

          5  children with disabilities. Providing these children

          6  with a transportation environment that accommodates

          7  their individual health needs is a priority for this

          8  Committee.

          9                 The Committee has received numerous

         10  reports from concerned parents claiming that

         11  children whose medical conditions require a climate-

         12  controlled transportation environment are not

         13  receiving such an accommodation from the Department

         14  of Education when they are being transported to and

         15  from school.

         16                 The health and well being of such

         17  children necessitates this Committee's consideration

         18  of Proposed Intro. 262- A today.  We have a

         19  responsibility to not only provide a sound and

         20  decent education for all of the kids in this City,

         21  but also giving them the means to get to and from

         22  school in a way that allows them to actually learn

         23  things once they get to school, and I have

         24  difficulty sitting on buses that are 90 degrees, or

         25  sometimes 100 degrees inside during the summer
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          2  months.  I get agitated after 5 minutes of that, and

          3  some of our kids who are autistic in some cases, and

          4  in other cases have other special needs, they are

          5  often subject to those very, very long rides,

          6  particularly during the summertime with no air-

          7  conditioning on the school buses.  We have had

          8  numerous testimonials from parents, whose kids have

          9  had to suffer through that, and I am proud that

         10  today we are taking a vote on this Bill that would

         11  address this very long standing, and serious

         12  problem.

         13                 At this time I would like to turn the

         14  floor over to my colleague, Council Member Hiram

         15  Monserrate, who is the author of this Bill.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  Thank you

         17  Mr. Chair, and good morning to everyone.  First and

         18  foremost, I would like to thank you Council Member

         19  John Liu, Chairman of the Transportation Committee,

         20  for your support and your leadership on this issue,

         21  and all the members of the Committee for their

         22  diligence.  It has been quite a long process, and I

         23  think that today we take a first and important step

         24  towards ensuring the comfortable transportation of

         25  children with special needs in our City, and
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          2  clearly, and I have said this before, in the roll

          3  that we all play as legislators and involved in the

          4  process of government, we bring many of our life

          5  experiences to the forefront and to the debate.  And

          6  as the father of an autistic son, a 7 year old, who

          7  was subjected to being on a bus for over an hour in

          8  100 degree weather, I can tell you the frustration

          9  that myself, and thousands of parents feel in the

         10  City of New York.  I think this is an important

         11  step, and I look forward to the passage of this

         12  Bill, and moving forward to ensuring that the

         13  special needs community, children and adults, in the

         14  City of New York, and that their special needs not

         15  be met, ensure that they are met, in fact.  Thank

         16  you.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, we have

         18  been joined by members of this Committee.  Council

         19  Member Sara Gonzalez from Brooklyn to my left,

         20  Council Member Oliver Koppell from the Bronx,

         21  Council Member Helen Sears from Queens, and Council

         22  Member Miguel Martinez from Manhattan.

         23                 I would like to thank the staff on

         24  this Committee, Mitch Schwartz, Legislative Counsel,

         25  and Chima Obichere, Financial Analyst, and Lupe Todd
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          2  from The Press, and Bridgett Fisher (phonetic) from

          3  Council Member Hiram Monserrate's office.

          4                 At this time, I would like to invite

          5  the first person to testify about today's bill,

          6  Marty Oestreicher from the New York City Department

          7  of Education.  Good morning and welcome.

          8                 MR. OESTREICHER:  Good morning.  Good

          9  morning Chairman Liu and members of the

         10  Transportation Committee.

         11                 I am Marty Oestreicher, I am the

         12  Chief Executive for Support Services in the

         13  Department of Education.

         14                 I am testifying today in regard to

         15  Intro. 262- A, the proposed legislation to clarify

         16  the responsibility of the Department of Education in

         17  providing air- conditioned school buses for special

         18  education students whose Individual Education

         19  Program (IEP) requires it for health reasons.

         20                 It has always bee DOE's policy to

         21  provide air conditioned buses for students deemed

         22  eligible via their IEP.  So let met review for you,

         23  at this time, the Department's procedures in this

         24  area.

         25                 Once the IEP team makes a
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          2  determination that a child has a need for an air-

          3  conditioned bus service, the information is entered

          4  by the school into our computer system, the ATS

          5  system. The Office of Pupil Transportation Services

          6  obtains this information, and takes the appropriate

          7  action.  If this information is a available at the

          8  beginning of the school year, before the beginning

          9  of the school year, OPT will specifically develop an

         10  air conditioned route.  The route's air-

         11  conditioning requirement is listed with the route

         12  when it is selected by the bus contractors. If we

         13  receive an IEP during the school year requiring the

         14  air conditioning, we will try to place the student

         15  on an air conditioned route.  If we cannot, we will

         16  either add or revise routes to ensure we that we

         17  meet the IEP requirements.

         18                 As of June, we transported 58,175

         19  special education students.  Of those, 1,014 were

         20  required by their IEP to have air conditioned

         21  busing.  Because routes cannot be developed

         22  exclusively for students with air- conditioning

         23  requirements, we provided air conditioned

         24  transportation to over 6,700 students last school

         25  year.
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          2                 Under our contract with bus

          3  operators, they are responsible for gradually

          4  increasing the percentage of the fleet containing

          5  air- conditioned buses.  For this year, the

          6  requirement is 20 percent of the, of the fleet,

          7  excluding the large buses, and this amounts to just

          8  over 800 buses.  The fleet currently contains nearly

          9  1,400 air- conditioned buses

         10                 The Department conducts random and

         11  scheduled inspections of the fleet to ensure

         12  compliance with safety requirements.  This past year

         13  we initiated dedicated random inspections for air-

         14  conditioning compliance.  Our inspectors went on the

         15  road to track whether the air- conditioning was

         16  working on designated routes.  The results were that

         17  over 98 percent of the buses inspected were in

         18  compliance.  In the cases of non compliance, bus

         19  contractors were fined one half their daily rate.

         20  The fines could range from $200 to $350, and it is

         21  in accordance with our contract.

         22                 Beginning in June of this year, we

         23  will conduct inspections of a minimum ten percent of

         24  the air- conditioned fleet. This will be a targeted

         25  effort with full documentation available for review
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          2  with strict enforcement of the penalties provided

          3  for in the contract.

          4                 We are confident that we have

          5  provided and will continue to provide air-

          6  conditioned transportation to all students for whom

          7  such service is mandated by their IEPs.

          8                 I will be glad to respond to any

          9  questions you may have.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, and the

         11  slip that you put in here says that you are speaking

         12  in favor of this Bill.

         13                 MR. OESTREICHER:  Right, I mean this

         14  Bill is consistent with our policy.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Terrific.  Are

         16  there any questions from council members for Mr.

         17  Oestreicher?

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  I have a

         19  question Mr. Chairman.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Council member

         21  Koppell.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Your last

         23  answer was not totally clear to me.  Does the

         24  Administration support this legislation?

         25                 MR. OESTREICHER:  Yes.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Okay, thank

          3  you.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  There being no

          5  other questions, thank you very much for your time

          6  this morning.

          7            I would like to ask our next witness to

          8  come up to the table, Peter Silverman from the

          9  School Bus Operators.  Good morning Mr. Silverman.

         10                 MR. SILVERMAN:  Thank you for

         11  permitting me to address the Committee.

         12                 My name is Peter Silverman, I

         13  represent the coalition of School Bus Operators.

         14                 We are the group that this Bill is

         15  directed at.  The Bill imposes fines and penalties

         16  upon the operators, not the Department of Education

         17  who controlled the routing of the buses and the

         18  designation of assignments for routing, but it is

         19  the operators who will bear the burden of complying

         20  with the Bill.  I think that you may want to

         21  consider some of the practical effects that this

         22  Bill can have, that are not going to meet with the

         23  objectives you are seeking to reach.

         24                 We have a contract with the

         25  Department of Education, our contract requires us to
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          2  have a certain percentage of our buses air-

          3  conditioned.  We actually exceed that percentage by

          4  June '04, we are required to have a approximately 25

          5  percent of special education vehicles air-

          6  conditioned.  We exceed that number now, and will

          7  exceed 25 percent in June '04.

          8                 The problem that this Bill is going

          9  to create is that if the number of children who

         10  qualify for air- conditioning under your program

         11  exceeds the number of buses we have available, we

         12  cannot provide the service, and the practical effect

         13  will be, if the Department of Education places a

         14  child, that requires air conditioning on a bus that

         15  exceeds the 25 percent quota, and is not in an air-

         16  conditioned vehicle, the bus will not run, and you

         17  will not have service.  We will not violate the law.

         18    And I think that everyone has to give some

         19  consideration to the practical effect of what the

         20  Bill will do.  It appears the system is working

         21  within the quota of buses that exist now.  If you

         22  invite more children to exceed the number of buses

         23  that we have, you will create a problem that is

         24  going to interfere with the service.

         25                 That is basically what I have to say.
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          2    The only other comment I have is you may want to

          3  consider the implementation of timing.  Our contract

          4  with the Board runs through June '05, and as of that

          5  date, if there are new contractual arrangements put

          6  in place with enough lead time, we can get

          7  additional buses that would be required to comply

          8  with any mandate you may impose here.             Secondly

          9  , I would suggest that the requirement for air-

         10  conditioning, if you are going to impose or insist

         11  upon passing this Bill, be limited just to the

         12  summer months.  Certainly, you do not need air-

         13  conditioning in the dead of winter, and I would

         14  suggest perhaps June through September would be the

         15  limitation of time that air- conditioning be

         16  required.

         17                 But again, I ask you to consider the

         18  practical effects, you may have a result that is not

         19  intended by this Bill, and you may not have service

         20  for special education children.  I know that is not

         21  what is intended, but that may be the practical

         22  effect based upon the fleet of vehicles that is

         23  currently available.  Thank you very much.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you for your

         25  time, Mr. Silverman.
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          2                 The 25 percent threshold that you

          3  speak of, is that a target for just the buses that

          4  transport kids with special needs, or is that for

          5  the entire fleet of school buses?

          6                 MR. SILVERMAN:  No, that is just for

          7  special education vehicles.

          8                 There are approximately, in the whole

          9  fleet of buses, the are approximately 4,000 buses,

         10  4,000, that transport special education children

         11  every day, so the quota, basically, is 1,000 would

         12  have to be air- conditioned of those 4,000 buses by

         13  June '04.  Right now, I think the number, according

         14  to Mr. Oestreicher, is something like 1,400 that we

         15  have air- conditioned. So the contractors have met

         16  their contractual burden, they have exceeded it, but

         17  again, the problem that we face, that we all face,

         18  is if you have too many children that require air-

         19  conditioned buses, and we do not have the buses to

         20  comply, you are not going to have service, and that

         21  is going to pose a serious problem for all of us.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  I appreciate what

         23  you are saying about exceeding the contractual

         24  obligations, and having 1,400 of the buses air-

         25  conditioned.  Do those buses only transport kids
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          2  that have been determined to require air-

          3  conditioning?

          4                 MR. SILVERMAN:  Well, the 1,400 buses

          5  are utilized and deployed by the Office of Pupil

          6  Transportation for special education children that

          7  have specific needs for air- conditioning.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So, in your opinion

          9  every single kid who requires air- conditioning,

         10  actually receives it, or 25 percent of all of them?

         11                 MR. SILVERMAN:  No, I am not saying,

         12  no that is not what I said.  I said 25 percent of

         13  all of the special education buses, and remember,

         14  there are 4,000 special education routes, and I said

         15  25 percent of that number, under our contract, that

         16  require to be air- conditioned buses, and that is

         17  the compliment of vehicles we have.

         18                 Also, one other thing you should keep

         19  in mind, we run our buses during the school year.

         20  We do not have the ability to drastically make an

         21  increase in that number while we are running the

         22  buses and transporting children to school.  We can

         23  not take buses out of service, and retro- fit them,

         24  and we certainly do not have the lead time, nor the

         25  financial capability of buying additional air-
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          2  conditioned buses.  And, you have a 180- day

          3  implementation time on this Bill.  So, we will be at

          4  our contractual quota, as required.  We will exceed

          5  that quota, but again, my concern is if the Bill

          6  ends up requiring more than that quota to transport

          7  children who are, who have the necessary

          8  documentation that require air- conditioned buses,

          9  then we face a serious dilemma.  If the Department

         10  of Education faces the dilemma, they are not going

         11  to be able to magically come up with air conditioned

         12  buses.  And, we as operators, simply will not run it

         13  in violation of the statute.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Question from

         15  Council Member Monserrate.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  Thank

         17  you, Mr. Chair. Thank you for your testimony.  It

         18  sounds like, to me, then if that would be the case,

         19  that you would have concerns about not having enough

         20  buses, I would assume that the operators would have

         21  to retro- fit more buses with air- conditioning

         22  units?

         23                 MR. SILVERMAN:  That is correct.  By

         24  the way, to retro- fit, there are only a few

         25  companies in the City that retro fit buses.  My
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          2  understanding is that companies that do it, and I

          3  think there are two or three can handle maybe three

          4  or four buses a week, to retro- fit, at most.   So

          5  you are not talking about a huge number of buses

          6  that can be retro- fit within a relatively short

          7  period of time.  But also remember, if you have to

          8  retro- fit a bus, you have to take it out of

          9  service, you can not take a bus out of service when

         10  you are transporting 60,000 special education

         11  children every day.  You need those buses to run.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  Thank

         13  you.

         14                 MR. SILVERMAN:  Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Question from

         16  Council member Martinez.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Thank you,

         18  Mr. Chair.  How many companies actually have

         19  contract with the City?

         20                 MR. SILVERMAN:  I think the number is

         21  somewhere between 30 and 40 companies.  I do not

         22  know the precise number.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Thirty and

         24  forty companies?

         25                 MR. SILVERMAN:  Yes.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  And they

          3  are all from the City, or from the State, or do

          4  others come from other states?

          5                 MR. SILVERMAN:  No, these are all

          6  local, New York City companies.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  New York

          8  City, now when you mention that there are 4,000

          9  routes for special education children, correct?

         10                 MR. SILVERMAN:  That is right.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  And when

         12  you are saying that you work year- round, are you

         13  saying that the 4,000 routes are also active during

         14  the summer period?

         15                 MR. SILVERMAN:  No, no, the 4,000

         16  routes are active during the school year of

         17  September through June, and during the summer

         18  months, and I do not know the numbers, the summer

         19  months they are obviously a much, or a reduced

         20  number of routes, I do not know what the number is.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  So, it is

         22  much less. Which means those buses during the summer

         23  period are not active?

         24                 MR. SILVERMAN:  There are a

         25  substantial number of buses that are not active
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          2  during the summer period, that is right.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  So, that,

          4  it would be fair to say that during that period it

          5  will give you enough time to get these buses

          6  equipped with the air- conditioning?

          7                 MR. SILVERMAN:  Well, actually, that

          8  is not correct.               COUNCIL MEMBER

          9  MARTINEZ:  In other words, what I am trying to get

         10  at, that you mentioned earlier that we should keep

         11  in mind that the buses should be required to have

         12  air- conditioning during the summer period.  So, at

         13  this time, summer is out.

         14                 MR. SILVERMAN:  Yes.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  And we are

         16  going into the winter time, so we do not require

         17  bus, we would not have the need for air-

         18  conditioning, which means, for the next summer

         19  period, since those buses are not active, that gives

         20  us the time that we need to get these buses equipped

         21  with the air- conditioning for the next school year,

         22  which means school year.

         23                 MR. SILVERMAN:  '05, you mean?

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  '05.

         25                 MR. SILVERMAN:  Actually, what I, our
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          2  position would be to have this Bill work, and be

          3  realistically implemented, the implementation date

          4  should be June '05.  That is the way it should work.

          5    June '04, first of all under a contractual

          6  situation, we are not required to have more than 25

          7  percent of our fleet, maybe we will be up to 30

          8  percent by June '04, based upon the number we know

          9  right now.  But, again, you run into a serious

         10  issue, June '04, in the summer of '04, as to whether

         11  or not there will be a sufficient number of air-

         12  conditioned buses to handle the load required by the

         13  statute.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  But in June

         15   '04 we are talking about two to three weeks in

         16  June, which means July, August, there is the two

         17  month period to equip the buses for the next school

         18  year during the summer period.  Is that correct?

         19                 MR. SILVERMAN:  I am not sure if I

         20  understand what you are getting at.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  In other

         22  words, I am trying to get at that during the summer

         23  period, all 4,000 routes for special education

         24  children that you transport, are not active. In

         25  other words, you do not have all 4,000, which means
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          2  you do not need the same amount of buses.

          3                 MR. SILVERMAN:  It is a lesser number

          4  of routes that are active in the summer period.

          5  That is correct.  But, remember, the summer as we

          6  are defining it stretches, includes June, which is a

          7  fully operational month.  It includes September,

          8  which is a fully operational month.  We are only

          9  talking about July and August where the utilization

         10  of the fleet goes down, but as a practical matter,

         11  Mr. Martinez, I can tell you that either financially

         12  or pragmatically, the operators can not have, and

         13  will not be able to have more than the compliment of

         14  air- conditioned buses by June '04, than is

         15  currently mandated.  Or maybe, five percent over

         16  that because they are over their requirements right

         17  now, and again, I think that if you have more kids

         18  that require air- condition, than the air-

         19  conditioned buses that will be available, you will

         20  face a serious problem of transportation because we

         21  will not run in violation of the statute if it is

         22  passed.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Are the

         24  contractors allowed to, let's say, rent buses to

         25  meet the needs?
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          2                 MR. SILVERMAN:  Well, there are.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Or is the

          4  Board of Ed, in other words, if there are additional

          5  kids, let's say the numbers grow, is the Board of Ed

          6  required only to contract with the buses they have

          7  now, or can the Board of Ed look for other companies

          8  to meet the needs?

          9                 MR. SILVERMAN:  The answer is, the

         10  Board of Ed, the Department of Education, the

         11  Department of Education can look wherever they feel

         12  the availability is, to fulfill the requirements,

         13  but realistically in New York City, we have the

         14  largest fleet in the country.  And, realistically,

         15  if the buses are not available here, you are not

         16  going to be able, on short notice, to obtain buses

         17  elsewhere.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  But, if the

         19  numbers grow, the Department of Education has

         20  options to look for companies to meet those needs?

         21                 MR. SILVERMAN:  They will not be able

         22  to find them.

         23                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  But do they

         24  have the option to look for other buses to meet the

         25  needs of transporting the kids?

                                                            23

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2                 MR. SILVERMAN:  Contractually, I

          3  would say the Board of Education can look wherever

          4  they felt the need, or the opportunity to find

          5  whatever service they can, but as a person who is on

          6  the ground, and who knows the business, I am telling

          7  you, they are not going to be available, and they

          8  are not going to be there.

          9                 The way this Bill should be

         10  implemented, it should have an implementation date

         11  of June '05, and then you would know that the

         12  service, you would have enough lead time to have the

         13  necessary buses in place, and you would know you be

         14  able to have the service and not threaten to

         15  interfere with the service this coming summer.  That

         16  is the serious concern we have.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Let me expand, a

         19  little bit, on Council Member Martinez, and then we

         20  still have questions from Council members Sears and

         21  Gonzalez.

         22                 Last fall, when we first heard this

         23  Bill, we were very concerned about the kids in the

         24  summer of '03, and unfortunately, with all of the

         25  work that has, that this Committee and the
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          2  Department has gone through, we were not able to

          3  address the needs this past summer.  We certainly do

          4  not intend to have a large number of our students

          5  suffer through yet another summer, in the summer of

          6   '04.  So, when you talk about implementation and

          7  phase- in, what we are really thinking about are

          8  those kids that are, that were indeed sitting in 100

          9  degree temperature buses this past summer.  We do

         10  not want a repeat of that next summer, and

         11  certainly, not in '05, as well.

         12                 I asked you before, when you talked

         13  about that 25 percent, whether that 25 percent

         14  referred only to the buses that are used to

         15  transport kids with special needs, or all school

         16  buses. I believe that that 25 percent target applies

         17  to all school buses that are run by the Department

         18  of Education.

         19                 MR. SILVERMAN:  No, it does not, Sir.

         20    The contract specifically provides that, what we

         21  refer to as the special education vehicles, and not

         22  all special education vehicles, there are certain

         23  types of vehicles that are designated.  The contract

         24  provides that 25 percent of those vehicles must be

         25  air- conditioned by June '04.
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          2                 Just one further point, the industry

          3  is a financially stressed industry, I am sure that

          4  has come to your attention in the past.  One of you

          5  largest contractors had to file for bankruptcy last

          6  year, second largest contractor just got out of the

          7  business entirely, simply walked away from it

          8  because they could not function any longer.  Margins

          9  are way down, and financially it is a distressed

         10  industry right now.  They do not have the ability,

         11  and they do not have the contractual obligation to

         12  do more than provide the 25 percent quota that I

         13  have mentioned to you before.

         14                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Question from

         15  Council member Sears.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Thank you, Mr.

         17  Chair.  I have just two very short questions.

         18  First, I have to make a statement that they Bill,

         19  the proposed Bill is not really a punitive thing to

         20  the industry, so, I think, when that is recognized,

         21  how long does it you, take a bus to retrofit?

         22                 And, secondly, as your fleet ages and

         23  you have to replace them, I mean, what is the

         24  frequency that that happens? Because I would think

         25  that when they are replaced, you replace them with
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          2  air- conditioning, at some point, so what is, what

          3  approximately is the percentage that you replace

          4  your fleet in a given year?

          5                 MR. SILVERMAN:  First of all, you are

          6  correct.  Most of the larger contractors, I am

          7  familiar with, whenever they replace a bus now and

          8  they replenish their fleet, they do in fact buy only

          9  air- conditioned buses right now, because they know

         10  the trend is trending up right now.  Although, it is

         11  25 percent in June, they know it is going to trend

         12  up and our next contract it is going to either be

         13  100 percent of higher, so, we have been making

         14  allowance for that all the way along.  As far as how

         15  the fleet is replenished, and at what rate, I can

         16  get back to you on that, give you specific

         17  information.  I just do not have it right now.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Because it

         19  seems that as the buses, as it is necessary for a

         20  bus to be retrofitted, that your contention is that

         21  the buses will be taken out of service, and

         22  therefore, the children will not be able to have

         23  service.

         24                 MR. SILVERMAN:  No, I am sorry.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Or did I
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          2  misunderstand you?

          3                 MR. SILVERMAN:  Well, there are two

          4  points I was trying to make.

          5                 First of all, the first point I was

          6  trying to make is that we do not require

          7  retrofitting of buses under our contract, now of

          8  course, we are in compliance with a number of air

          9  conditioned vehicles we are required to have.  What

         10  I was suggesting was that if there was a substantial

         11  increase in the number of air- conditioned buses

         12  that were required, the only way that could be done

         13  as far as I could see, would be to start

         14  retrofitting buses and that would interfere with

         15  current service.  That is what I was trying to get

         16  across.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Do you know

         18  offhand, what is the shortest and longest time of

         19  the routes for your buses that do no have air-

         20  conditioning?

         21                 MR. SILVERMAN:  No, I do not.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Okay, because

         23  I think that, Mr. Chairman maybe you could provide

         24  that information to the Committee because if a child

         25  is on a bus an hour, if some of them are, depending

                                                            28

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  on where they are being transported, I know we have

          3  had some very, very hot days in May, and for

          4  children with extreme asthma, and those cases are

          5  increasing enormously, and air conditioning is very

          6  vital, so perhaps we may have to look at the

          7  distances as well, because I think that is a very

          8  key element.

          9                 I support this Bill, I am going to

         10  ask to be on it because I think with the growing

         11  need, and as we look at statistics in the City of

         12  New York, the need for special services with those

         13  children that have special needs are creating an

         14  extreme necessity for us to be very sensitive to

         15  that.  It is far better to have healthy children

         16  with their disabilities, than to have children with

         17  disabilities that are also sick.  So, I think we

         18  need to look at that.

         19                 MR. SILVERMAN:  I guess if the Bill

         20  stated the Department of Education "shall", I would

         21  have no concern because it is the Department of

         22  Education's responsibility to route the children,

         23  and to see to it that they obtain the buses.  But

         24  your Bill does not say that, it says if the

         25  operators, if the operators dare to provide an
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          2  un-air-conditioned bus to a special needs child,

          3  that they are subject to fines and penalties.  So

          4  the Bill casts the obligations on the backs of the

          5  industry, which first of all cannot afford it, and

          6  secondly is not contractually obligated to provide

          7  the service in excess of the quota I have mentioned.

          8    Now, maybe your Bill should be directed to, in a

          9  different way, instead of directing it at us because

         10  we cannot comply with it, direct it at your

         11  Department of Education.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Well, if I, I

         13  can ask the sponsor of the Bill, and the Chair to

         14  respond to that because I feel confident that they

         15  have absolutely pursued this issue and have weighed

         16  very carefully the issue that you are raising.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Council member

         18  Monserrate.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  Thank

         20  you.  To my colleague, Council members, this is

         21  really directed to the gentlemen that is testifying

         22  today.  To be quite frank with you, outside of the

         23  contractual agreements that you have, no one should

         24  be transported in a bus for over an hour in 100

         25  degree weather, period, contract or otherwise.  I do
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          2  not know how it was that all these years your

          3  industry engaged in that, which I think was

          4  problematic, which was the reason why I introduced

          5  this Bill.               Certainly, myself, my

          6  colleagues, and yourself do not travel in a vehicle

          7  for over an hour, but secondly, the issue that you

          8  raise regarding the Department of Education, I guess

          9  that is more a contractual issue that the operators

         10  will need to negotiate or perhaps re- negotiate with

         11  the Department of Education.            We are doing

         12  what we believe is prudent here, legislatively, to

         13  ensure that it happens, since as of yet, there was

         14  not the impetus to do it by either the operators on

         15  their own or the Department of Education.

         16                 So, now, you folks can go back to the

         17  drawing board, and I believe, re- negotiate

         18  contracts appropriately that will help the operators

         19  to comply with the law.

         20                 MR. SILVERMAN:  But would it not make

         21  more sense for you to direct the Department of the

         22  City that controls the routing, and controls which

         23  children go on which buses?  Would it not make more

         24  sense for you to direct that Department to comply

         25  with this mandate?
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  But I

          3  think that my earlier point was that we should not

          4  have special needs children on buses in 100 degree

          5  weather, with no air- conditioning, period.

          6                 MR. SILVERMAN:  I think there was

          7  nobody in this room who would disagree with that

          8  statement.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MONSERRATE:  And that

         10  is why that there really should be very little

         11  debate on this Bill, in my opinion.

         12                 MR. SILVERMAN:  There should be no

         13  debate on it. There should be a realistic attitude

         14  as to how it would be implemented, and whether or

         15  not it can be implemented if the number of such

         16  children increased dramatically, and I do not think

         17  anyone is taking that into consideration, with all

         18  due respect.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  I think with

         20  another issue that has not been brought up yet, but

         21  certainly came up in the discussions that led to

         22  today's hearing, is the fact that even in the

         23  contract there have been numerous cases where the

         24  contract with the Department of Education was not

         25  completely satisfied or fulfilled, and that in many
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          2  cases, where school buses actually were required to

          3  have functioning air- conditioners on those

          4  vehicles, they did not indeed.  And, so, that does

          5  become, that does place the onus back on the

          6  operators of the buses, and so, what we have here is

          7  a Bill that will remedy the situation, and remedy it

          8  for the next coming summer season, where many of

          9  these kids have had to suffer in past summers.  So,

         10  to say that it is only, the onus is solely upon the

         11  Department of Education, that is not completely,

         12  that is not the whole picture either, there

         13  definitely is a responsibility on the part of the

         14  bus operators.

         15                 MR. SILVERMAN:  There definitely is,

         16  and the contract provides for very stiff penalties

         17  to the contractors, if they violate their

         18  contractual obligations with regard to furnishing

         19  air- conditioned buses, and those penalties, where

         20  there has been a violation, as I understand it, have

         21  been imposed.  The numbers that I heard Mr.

         22  Oestreicher testify to, with respect to their

         23  inspections, indicated that there was a overwhelming

         24  compliance with the air- conditioning requirements

         25  by the contractors.
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          2                 But, again, there is a civil

          3  provision for penalties, and I would agree with you,

          4  if contractors did not comply with the contractual

          5  obligations, they should be fined severely, and

          6  there is a provision for that in the contract.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  That is a great

          8  point.  I think fines or no fines, or fines

          9  notwithstanding, it is this Committee's interest

         10  that the kids be provided with the environments that

         11  they need in order to learn, and I, notwithstanding

         12  your comments about the payment of these fines when

         13  violations have, indeed, been found, I would like to

         14  go back to your earlier statement about how bus

         15  operators simply would not run, contrary to the law,

         16  and that you would hold back the bus rather than

         17  operate it in violation of the law.  And I am

         18  confident that the school bus operators will be able

         19  to manage their routes in a way that all the kids

         20  that are deemed to require air- conditioning are

         21  indeed put on school buses that are so equipped.

         22                 MR. SILVERMAN:  But that is just the

         23  point, school bus operators do not manage that.

         24                 The management of the direction of

         25  the routes, which children are carried, where they
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          2  are carried from, is mandated and determined by the

          3  Department of Education's Office of Pupil

          4  Transportation.  Contractors do not determine their

          5  destiny in that respect, they just follow the

          6  directions of the Department of Education.

          7                 So, we do not have the ability to say

          8  which kids go on which bus.  We are told, or we are

          9  given instructions.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  When you are

         11  talking about the fine and the penalty mechanism

         12  that currently exists in your contract, how often is

         13  that actually, how often are, do you think that

         14  there are many violations that go undetected?

         15  Because the fact remains, that we get in our offices

         16  complaints from parents whose kids are supposed to

         17  be in air- conditioned buses and they are not, or

         18  maybe they do have an air- conditioner on board the

         19  bus, and it is simply not working.  Are those

         20  violations there and undetected?

         21                 MR. SILVERMAN:  Councilman Liu, as I

         22  understand it, there are around 60,000 special ed.

         23  Children that are transported every day, and I am

         24  sure within that large a number of group of

         25  children, there are situations where things occur

                                                            35

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  which we would all prefer did not occur.  But, on an

          3  overall performance basis, I am led to believe that

          4  the performance has been outstanding to date, even

          5  though there are complaints, and even though there

          6  are some horror stories that you hear from time to

          7  time, about overheated buses, on an overall basis I

          8  think there has been very substantial compliance to

          9  date.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  All right, follow

         11  up from Council member Sears.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  Thank you, Mr.

         13  Chair.  I just wanted to say that when a Bill

         14  becomes law, it behooves all the negotiating parties

         15  to have contractual arrangements that are in

         16  compliance with the law, so it would seem that your

         17  industry would be sharing that responsibility with

         18  the Administration.

         19                 So, I think that some of the issues

         20  you brought up are things that will be part of the

         21  negotiating for new contracts. I would think so, I

         22  am not an attorney but I would think so.  Thank you,

         23  Mr. Chair.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Council

         25  member Sears. And one more question from Council
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          2  member Koppell, and we have also been joined by

          3  Council member Eva Moskowitz from Manhattan.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  I think that

          5  my colleague, Council member Sears put her finger

          6  right on the point.

          7                 First of all, are the provisions of

          8  this legislation, which require air- conditioning,

          9  not for all 58,000 special ed students, but only for

         10  approximately 1,000, as I understand it, who have a

         11  special requirement.  So only talk, first of all,

         12  before we get all confused here, we are talking

         13  about 1,000 kids, not 58,000 kids, not 4,000 buses,

         14  that is number one. Are not the provisions of this

         15  Bill consistent with your contractual obligations

         16  today?

         17                 MR. SILVERMAN:  No.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  They are

         19  not?

         20                 MR. SILVERMAN:  No, absolutely not.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Your

         22  contract does not--.

         23                 MR. SILVERMAN:  Absolutely not,

         24  absolutely not, our contract says that we are

         25  required to have a certain percentage of our fleet
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          2  air- conditioned, each year of our contract, and the

          3  percentages have gradually gone up from 10 percent

          4  to 15 to 20 to 25 percent in June '04, and the point

          5  I have been trying to make, Council man Koppell, is

          6  that we are contractually obligated to provide that

          7  number of air- conditioned buses, and I said at the

          8  outset of my testimony, if with that compliment of

          9  buses we are able to provide the necessary air-

         10  conditioned buses that is required by your Bill,

         11  then we are fine, but if the universe, if the

         12  universe of special education children, who require

         13  air conditioning should exceed, and I think this

         14  Bill will invite that to happen, and we cannot

         15  furnish the necessary buses because it exceeds our

         16  compliment, then we are not going to be able to

         17  perform.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Do, let me

         19  ask you this, when does your contract expire?

         20                 MR. SILVERMAN:  The contract expires

         21  June 2005, we have one summer left on the contract.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Well, it

         23  apparently, the Department of Education believes

         24  because they just testified, that there are, first

         25  of all they say they are in compliance today, so
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          2  they must believe that there are enough buses to

          3  allow the operators to comply with this requirement.

          4    So, they must believe that there are enough buses

          5  available to comply with this.

          6                 The idea here is that where the

          7  operator is informed that these students, the 1,000

          8  students, or one of the thousand or more of, or one

          9  or more of the thousand students is on the route,

         10  they have to then provide an air- conditioned bus.

         11  Now, I suppose if they were unable to do so, or if

         12  they were asked to violate their contractual

         13  obligation in doing so, you would have an argument

         14  because we cannot, we cannot violate a contract.  If

         15  there is a contractual provision that this law would

         16  violate, then constitutionally, as you know, there

         17  is a contract clause in the United States and State

         18  Constitution, that prevents us from violating a

         19  contract.  The federal government may be able to do

         20  it but not the state government, or the City

         21  government, but my understanding is that the

         22  Department of Education is saying that under current

         23  contractual arrangements, there are sufficient air

         24  conditioned buses to meet this requirement.

         25                 If that is not so, as I said, they
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          2  would be, we would be exceeding our authority, and

          3  you could object.  So, I think while you may have

          4  some theoretical concern, I think it is largely

          5  theoretical.  Now, certainly, as Council member

          6  Sears pointed out, in the next contract it will be

          7  necessary for the City to put these provisions in,

          8  because now they are provisions of law. So, I think

          9  that sort of maps out the situation.  Given the fact

         10  that we are only talking about 1,000 kids, and that

         11  there is a requirement that a significant percentage

         12  of the fleet already be air- conditioned, it seems

         13  to me that the provisions of this law can be

         14  complied with consistent with your contractual

         15  arrangements.  If not, you have a good defense, but

         16  it looks to me like it is possible, and therefore,

         17  given the fact that it is possible, if this Bill

         18  required that every bus be air- conditioned, that

         19  would violate your contract because your contract

         20  says you do not have to air- condition every bus.

         21  But this Bill does not say that every bus be air-

         22  conditioned, so I think that one can read this Bill

         23  consistent with your contract, and it certainly can

         24  be consistent with future contracts, so I intend to

         25  vote for it.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you, Council

          3  member Koppell.

          4                 There are no other questions, thank

          5  you very much Mr. Silverman.

          6                 MR. SILVERMAN:  Thank you.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Our final witness

          8  this morning is Kathy Casey.  Please join us at the

          9  table.

         10                 MS. CASEY:  Good morning.  I did not

         11  come here this morning intending to testify on this

         12  proposed legislation but I feel impelled to do so

         13  based on what I heard so far during the hearing, and

         14  the point just made be Council member Koppell simply

         15  reenforces my feeling about the statement I want to

         16  make, which is this.  It seems to me that the crux

         17  of the problem here is the question of the contract

         18  requires 25 percent of the 4,000 routes to be air-

         19  conditioned vehicles.  The contract does not refer

         20  to the question that individual students with

         21  special needs are individually certified or

         22  documented as requiring air- conditioning, so the

         23  kernel of the question is having the students who

         24  need the air- conditioning on the air- conditioned

         25  buses, now Council member Koppell just pointed out a
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          2  very important piece of information that we are only

          3  talking about approximately 1,000 students with

          4  special needs.

          5                 Mr. Silverman himself testified

          6  earlier, he quoted the person from the Department of

          7  Education as saying that there already are

          8  approximately 1,400 air- conditioned buses.  I do

          9  not know why Mr. Silverman himself does not know how

         10  many air conditioned buses there are out of the

         11  4,000 buses, but he did quote the person from the

         12  Department of Education as saying that the 25

         13  percent requirement is already exceeded, and that it

         14  is approximately 1,400 air- conditioned buses,

         15  specifically of the fleet that is used to transport

         16  special needs students.

         17                 So, it seems to me that, although I

         18  am shedding no tears for the poor, suffering,

         19  financially industry, that there is a shared

         20  responsibility here between the Department of

         21  Education and the contracting companies, and that it

         22  is the responsibility even before the current

         23  contract expires that the Department of Education

         24  should be taking a look at the routing, and making

         25  sure that those 1,000 students, and any additional
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          2  ones who are certified will be on those already,

          3  existing air- conditioned buses during the current

          4  contract, and certainly during the next contract.  I

          5  hate to say that, this seems belaboring the obvious

          6  almost, and it is clear to me from what I have

          7  heard, that each and every one of the Committee

          8  members understands this.  I do not know if there is

          9  any.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  So what is your

         11  position on this Bill?

         12                 MS. CASEY:  I do not know if there is

         13  any necessity to add any clause to the proposed

         14  legislation addressing that, but my position on the

         15  Bill is that I support the Bill.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.

         17                 MS. CASEY:  Even as it stands.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.  Any

         19  questions from Council members?  Thank you for your

         20  time.

         21                 We are now going to, if there are no

         22  other comments or questions, we are going to take a

         23  vote on this Bill.  But, before we do so, I think

         24  Mr. Silverman did bring up a very valid point that

         25  we can address with a small change to the Bill as
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          2  written, and I would like to ask Committee members

          3  to take a look at the first page of the Bill, and

          4  under Section 19- 605, Paragraph A, in the first

          5  sentence, it currently reads, any bus or other motor

          6  vehicle transporting a child with a disability to

          7  and from a school in the City, pursuant to any

          8  agreement or contract shall be air- conditioned.  We

          9  will add the following clause to the end of that

         10  first sentence, so that the first sentence will now

         11  read, any bus or other motor vehicle transporting a

         12  child with a disability to and from a school in the

         13  City pursuant to any agreement or contract shall be

         14  air- conditioned when the ambient, outside

         15  temperature exceeds 70 degrees Fahrenheit.

         16                 And that is the text of the Bill that

         17  we are about to vote on.

         18                 I recommend that Committee members

         19  vote yes on this Bill.  Will the clerk please call

         20  the role?

         21                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Liu.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Yes.

         23                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Moskowitz.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER MOSKOWITZ:  Yes.

         25                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Addabbo.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER ADDABBO:  Yes.

          3                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Koppell.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Yes.

          5                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Martinez.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  May I

          7  explain my vote, Mr. Chair?

          8                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Please do.

          9                 COUNCIL MEMBER MARTINEZ:  Mr. Chair,

         10  before I vote, I just want to commend Council Member

         11  Hiram Monserrate for taking this initiative.

         12                 It is a, an important initiative in

         13  ensuring that our most vulnerable among the

         14  population of students in the City of New York, when

         15  being transported to the schools and back home are

         16  accommodated with a transportation that meets their

         17  needs, and I want to vote yes on this Bill.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.

         19                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Sears.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER SEARS:  I vote yes,

         21  and I would like my name, Mr. Chair, added to this

         22  Bill.  Thank you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Thank you.

         24                 COUNCIL CLERK:  Gonzalez.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER GONZALEZ:  I vote yes,
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          2  and I also want my name added to the Bill.  Thank

          3  you.

          4                 COUNCIL CLERK:  By a vote of 7 in the

          5  affirmative, 0 the negative, and no abstentions, the

          6  items is adopted.  Council members please sign the

          7  Committee Report.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER KOPPELL:  Mr.

          9  Chairman, could my name also be added since the Bill

         10  is being amended?

         11                 CHAIRPERSON LIU:  Absolutely, thank

         12  you very much.

         13                 That there be no other business of

         14  this Committee this morning, this hearing is

         15  adjourned.

         16                 (Hearing adjourned at 11:14 a.m.)
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